
 
Agenda 

SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, August 13, 2025 - 5:30 p.m. 
Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 

970 Klamath Lane – Board Room 
Yuba City, CA  95993 

 
 
 

A full Board packet is available for review at the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
Reception Desk, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  (8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday 
– excluding legal holidays) and the Sutter County Superintendent of Schools’ website at 
www.sutter.k12.ca.us. 
 
5:30 p.m. 1.0 Call to Order 
 
  2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
 
  3.0 Roll Call of Members:  
   Kash Gill, Trustee Area 3, President 
   Victoria Lachance, Trustee Area 5, Vice President 
   Gurv Pamma, Trustee Area 1, Member 
   Mike Reid, Trustee Area 2, Member 
   Harjit Singh, Trustee Area 4, Member 
    
  4.0 Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board 

Members of the public are given an opportunity to address the Board 
regarding items not listed on the agenda.  The California Government Code, 
Section 54954.3(a) states, “…….no action shall be taken on any item not 
appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by 
subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2. 
 

 
  5.0 Consent Agenda 
   5.1 Special Board Meeting Minutes  
    
 
   

http://www.sutter.k12.ca.us/


Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  
August 9, 2023 
 
 
  6.0     Investment Report    
   The Investment Statement as of June 2025 from the Country Treasure will  
   be presented. 
   Assistant Superintendent, Ron Sherrod 
                 

7.0       Business Services Report 
            The monthly financial report for July will be reviewed. 
            Director, Nicolaas Hoogeveen 

    
  8.0       Donations 
              8.1 Schools First Federal Credit Union $3500.00 
   Assistant Superintendent, Ron Sherrod 
 
  9.0       Items from the Superintendent/Board  
                                     
 

10.0 Adjournment 
 

 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to 
access the Board Meeting room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board Meeting, 
or to otherwise participate at Board Meetings, please contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530-
822-2900 for assistance.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
Superintendent’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board 
Meeting and to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services. 
 
All Open Session Agenda related documents, including materials distributed less than 72 hours prior 
to the scheduled meeting, are available to the public for viewing at the Sutter County Superintendent 
of Schools Office located at 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  95993. 
 



Unapproved Minutes 
SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
  1.0 Call to Order 

 President Kash Gill, 5:30 p.m., June 18, 2025, at the Sutter County 
 Superintendent of Schools Office, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, California, 
 called a regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education to order. 

  2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
   Vice President Victoria Lachance led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
  3.0 Roll Call of Members: 
   Kash Gill, Trustee Area 3, President- Present 
   Victoria Lachance, Trustee Area 5, Vice President- Present 
   Gurv Pamma, Trustee Area 1, Member- Present 
   Mike Reid, Trustee Area 2, Member- Present 
   Harjit Singh, Trustee Area 4, Member- Absent 
 
  4.0 Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board 

None 
 

  5.0 Approval of Minutes June 18, 2025       
   A motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda.      
              Motion: Reid  Seconded:  Pamma 
    Action: Motion Carried 
    Ayes: 4 (Lachance, Pamma, Reid, Gill)   Noes: 0        
    Absent: 1  (Singh)                                   Abstain:0 
 
     6.0 Information Presentation on Lease – Purchase Financing Solar Projects at FRA  
    and Shady Creek Outdoor School.  The board has been updated on the lease  
    purchase arrangement for the solar project. The total cost is 2.6 million, with  
    a 20 year financing term. The project is scheduled to begin in October 2025 
     
    Public Hearing opened at 5:49 p.m. 
 
      7.0  Public Hearing Pursuant to Government Code Sections 4217.12 and 4217.13  
    Concerning an Energy Services Contract and Related Equipment   
    Lease/Purchase Financing. 
    Board was updated on the two resolutions. There was zero public comments. 
    
    Public Hearing closed at 5:50 p.m. 
 



     8.0      Resolution Authorizing an Energy Conservation Services Agreement. 
    A.B.S Company provided an update of the 4217 legislation and the propped  
    Energy Conservation Services Agreement. The presentation detailed how the  
    legislation enables public entities to enter into energy performance contracts  
    to improve energy efficiency and reduce long-term utility costs. The design is  
    to be cost-neutral or cost-savings through the guaranteed energy savings  
    over time.  
    A motion was made to adopt the Energy Services Contract and Related  
    Equipment Lease/Purchasing Financing 
    A motion was made Reid and second Lachace to adopt the Contract 
    Roll Call: Pamma Aye, Lachance Aye, Gill Aye, Reid Aye 
 
     9.0 Resolution Authorizing Equipment Lease-Purchasing Financing 
    Consider adoption of the resolution approving the form of and authorizing  
    the execution and delivery of an equipment lease- purchase agreement. 
    A motion was made by Reid and second Lachance to approve the equipment  
    lease purchase agreement. 
    Roll Call: Pamma Aye, Lachance Aye, Gill Aye, Reid Aye 
 
     10.0  Facilities Site Profile Worksheet and Update summary for the end of FY 24-25 
    James updated the board on what FMOF has accomplished so far and  
    outlined upcoming plans for the near future which is a big solar project that  
    was just approved.  
     
 
     11.0 Approval of Lease for SPED Preschool Classroom Space from E. Center 
    Ron updated the board on the SPED classroom space that is still is in need for 
    the 25-26 school year. 
    A motion was made to approve the lease 
    Motion: Lachance                                Second: Pamma 
    Ayes: 4                    Noes: 0   Abstain: 0 
 
             12.0 Investment Statement as of May 31, 2025 
    Marginal increase in rate still above 3 %. 
     
     13.0 Business Services Report 
    Nicolaas updated the board on the June budget. There was no further  
    questions from the board. 
 
     14.0 Disclosure of CBA Agreement for Sutter County Superintendent of Schools  
    Employee Association, Chapter 634. 
    Nicolaas updated the board on the CSEA 24/25 one time off schedule of  
    $500.00 payment and $600.00 annual increase to employer benefits. 
 



     15.0 Disclosure of CBA for California Teachers Association. 
    CTA agreed to 24/25 and 25/26 2% to salary schedule (retro for 24/25) and  
    25/26 $2400.00 annually to health cap, and $85.00 to the teacher on record. 
 
     16.0  Items from the Superintendent and Board 
    1. Thank you to Tania for helping the Executive Assistant while out 
    2. Board Members have toured the new building  
    3. The board thanked Tom for drone photos of the new building 
     
     17.0     Adjournment 
           A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 6:11 p.m. 
            Motion: Pamma  Seconded: Lachance 
    Action: Motion Carried 
    Ayes: 4 (Lachance, Pamma, Reid, Gill)   Noes: 0        
    Absent: 1 (Singh)                                   Abstain: 0 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
     
                              

 
 

 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   6.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Investment Statements 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  August 13, 2025            
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
 X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Ron Sherrod   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
The Investment Statement as of June 30, 2025 from the County Treasurer will be  
presented.  
  
 
 
 
 



















  Agenda Item No.  ___ 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM:   

BOARD MEETING DATE:  

AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 

Action 

Reports/Presentation 

Information 

Public Hearing 

Other (specify) 

PREPARED BY: 

SUBMITTED BY: 

PRESENTING TO BOARD: 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 



Description Account Original Operating Actuals to Projected Difference 2025-26 %

Codes Budget Budget Date Yr Totals (Col D - B) Actuals

as a %

7/1/25 7/1/25 7/15/25 7/15/25 of Budget
(A) (B) (C) (D)  (E)

A.  Revenues

    1. Local Control Funding Formula 8010-8099 12,099,350$     12,099,350$    -$               12,099,350$  -                   A 0.0%
    2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 4,489,293$       4,489,293$      12,599$         4,899,163$    409,870            B 0.3%

    3. Other State Revenues 8300-8599 13,550,404$     13,550,404$    -$               13,550,404$  -                   C 0.0%

    4. Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 21,802,094$     21,802,094$    35,175$         21,811,094$  9,000                D 0.2%

      5. TOTAL REVENUES 51,941,141$     51,941,141$    47,774$         52,360,011$  418,870$          0.1%

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 11,357,105$     11,357,105$    -$               11,357,105$  -                   E 0.0%

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 14,324,610$     14,324,610$    -$               14,324,610$  -                   F 0.0%

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 12,138,181$     12,138,181$    (158)$             12,138,181$  -                   G 0.0%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,260,846$       1,260,846$      2,469$           1,301,709$    40,863              H 0.2%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 9,440,690$       9,440,690$      776,218$       10,255,415$  814,725            I 8.2%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 273,478$          273,478$         -$               281,478$       8,000                J 0.0%

    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 1,924,257$       1,924,257$      3,536$           1,924,257$    -                   K 0.2%

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (125,714)$        (125,714)$        -$               (125,714)$      -                   L 0.0%

    9. Debt Service 7400-7499 847,732$          847,732$         -$               847,732$       -                   M 0.0%

 

       10. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 51,441,185$     51,441,185$    782,065$       52,304,773$  863,588            1.5%

C. Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures Before Other

Financing Sources and Uses 
(A5-B10)

D. Other Financing Sources/Uses

    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 34,000$           34,000$           -$               42,000$         8,000                0.0%

    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 1,950,036$       1,950,036$      -$               1,950,036$    -                   0.0%

    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                 -$                 -$               -$               -                   0.0%

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses (1,916,036)$     (1,916,036)$     -$               (1,908,036)$   8,000$              0.0%

E. Net Change to Fund Balance (1,416,080)$      (1,416,080)$      (734,291)$       (1,852,798)$    (436,718)$         H

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)

    1. Beginning Balance 32,983,622$     32,983,622$    32,983,622$  32,983,622$  -                   

    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                 -$                 -$               -$               

       Ending Balance 31,567,542$      31,567,542$     32,249,331$   31,130,824$   (436,718)$         

G. Components of Ending Fund Balance
    Designated Amounts 9711-9730 10,500$           10,500$           10,500$         -$                 

    Legally Restricted 9740-9760 15,348,062$     15,348,062$    13,557,350$  -$                 

    Assigned 9780 13,539,419$     13,539,419$    14,850,234$  -$                 

    Restricted Economic Uncertainty 9789 2,669,561$       2,669,561$      2,712,740$    -$                 

    Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 -$                 -$                 -$               -$                 

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
(Unrestricted and Restricted Combined)

July 2025

-1329.3%(444,718)$         55,238$         (734,291)$      499,956$         499,956$          

07/01/25-07/15/25



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget July Board Report

07/01/25-07/15/25

Amount Explanation of Differences

A Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)

  -$                       

B Federal Revenues (8100-8299)
One Stop 372,214$           Establishing financial aid budget from Career Training Center

Feather River Academy (FRA) 37,656$             Set up 23/24 Comprehensive Support and Improvement carry over budget

409,870$           

C Other State Revenues (8300-8599)

-$                       

D Other Local Revenues (8600-8799)
Special Education 2,000$               Budget donation for Professional Development meal reimbursement

Curriculum, Instruction, and Accountability (CIA) 7,000$               Set up budget for High Impact Math Coaching

9,000$               

E Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)

-$                       

F Classified Salaries (2000-2999)

-$                       

G Employee Benefits  (3000-3999)

-$                       

H Books and Supplies  (4000-4999)
Special Education 33,458$             Establish classroom activity budgets and students chromebooks

Regional Occupation Program (ROP) (3,000)$              Decrease supplies budget to cover Online Curriculum

Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 9,590$               Establishing budget for Medical Therapy Unit

Various departments 815$                  Miscellaneous Adjustments

40,863$             

I Services, Other Operations (5000-5999)

Special Education 399,086$           
Establish budget for Yuba City playground improvement at Butte Vista, 

Pariss settlement, and 24/25 Arts & Music in schools from ending fund 

balance

One Stop 372,214$           Establishing financial aid budget from Career Training Center

Tri County Induction Program (TCIP) 6,500$               Establish budget for MOU with Lake County

Regional Occupation Program (ROP) 3,000$               Moving supplies budget to cover online curriculum

Feather River Academy (FRA) 33,925$             Set up budget for Comprehensive Support and Improvement carryover

814,725$           

J Capital Outlay (6000-6999)
Middle College 8,000$               Establish budget for Middle College copier purchase

8,000$               

K Other Outgo (7100 - 7299)

-$                       



Explanation of Differences 
Net Change in Current Year Budget July Board Report

07/01/25-07/15/25

Amount Explanation of Differences
L Direct Support / Indirect (7300-7399)

-$                       

M Debt Services (7400 - 7499)

-$                       

N Transfers In (8910-8979)
Middle College 8,000$               Establish budget for Middle College copier purchase

8,000$               

O Transfers Out (7610-7629)

-$                       

P Contributions (8980-8999)

-$                       

Net Change in Current Year Budget (436,718)$          



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   8.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Donations  
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    August 13, 2025                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Maggie Navarro  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
Ron Sherrod   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
Ron Sherrod  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 

Donor               Value   Purpose 
Schools First Federal Credit Union            $3,500.00 Lunch for Welcome Back Day 
 
           
   
    
  
    Total           $3,500.00 
    

25-26 Year Current Period To Date 
Total Donations-Cash     $0.00  $3,500.00  $3,500.00 

 Total Donations-Value $0.00  $0.00   $0.00 
Total Donations  $0.00  $3,500.00  $3,500.00 
 

 




	1.0 August Agenda
	5.0 July Unapproved Meeting Minutes
	6.0 Investment Report
	6.1 Treasurer Investment Report 06312025
	7.0 Board Agenda Item - JULY
	Agenda Item No.  ___
	BOARD AGENDA ITEM:
	BOARD MEETING DATE:
	BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:

	7.1 July Board Report 07-01-25 to 07-15-25
	8.0 Donations
	8.1 Schools First Credit Union

	Agenda Item No: 7.0
	BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Business Services Report
	BOARD MEETING DATE: August 13, 2025
	PREPARED BY: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	SUBMITTED BY: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	PRESENTING TO BOARD: Nicolaas Hoogeveen
	BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: The monthly financial report for July will be reviewed
	Action: 
	0: 
	0: Off
	1: Yes

	1: 
	0: Off
	1: Off


	Check Box3: Off


